
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS

DECEMBER 9, 2019

Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the governing body of the City of
Navasota will be held on the 9th of December, 2019 at 6:00 PM at the City Hall in the
City Council Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street, Navasota,
Texas 77868, at which time the following subjects will be considered, to wit:

1. Call to Order.

2. Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

3. Remarks of visitors: Any citizen may address the City Council on any matter.
Registration forms are available on the podium and/or table in the back of the city
council chambers. This form should be completed and delivered to the City
Secretary by 5:45 p.m. Please limit remarks to three minutes. The City Council will
receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the issue on a
future agenda. Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the City Manager.

4. Staff Report:

(a) Update from Ameresco on meter replacement, lighting retro-fit and SCADA
installation;

(b) Announcement of personnel changes;

(c) Staff recognition for years of service;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests,
including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information
regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or
sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community
events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be
attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent
threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after
the posting of the agenda.

5. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 665-19, accepting Dove
Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street and drainage infrastructure.

6. Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 666-19, support of proposed
rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees.

7. Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 1 on the SCADA System
Project.

8. Report on U.S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar Creek.



9. Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and
vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor
or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent
Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the
regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of November,
2019;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of
November, 2019;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 910-
19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2:
Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract
4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space
district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential
district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres
54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-
2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally
described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract
6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in
Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

D. Consideration and possible action the second reading of Ordinance No. 911-19,
extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, providing for the annexation
of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62
and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.

10. Adjourn.

DATED THIS THE 5TH OF DECEMBER, 2019

/BS/

BY: BRAD STAFFORD, CITY MANAGER

I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above notice of meeting
of the governing body of the CITY OF NAVASOTA, is a true and correct copy of
said notice and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice in the glass
bulletin board, in the foyer, on the south side of the Municipal Building as well
as in the bulletin board on the north side of the Municipal Building of the City of
Navasota, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public
at all times, and said notice was posted on the 5th of December, 2019 at 03:09
PM and will remain posted continuously for at least 72 hours preceding the
scheduled time of said meeting. Agendas may be viewed at
www.navasotatx.gov.



The City Council reserves the right to convene in Executive Session at any time
deemed necessary for the consideration of confidential matters under the
Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071-551.084.

DATED THIS THE 5TH OF DECEMBER, 2019

/SMH/

BY: SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING
SPACES ARE AVAILABLE. REQUESTS FOR ACCOMMODATIONS OR
INTERPRETIVE SERVICES MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS
MEETING. PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE
AT(936) 825 6475 OR (936) 825 6408 OR BY FAX AT (936) 825 2403.



City Manager’s Message 

An Executive Summary of Agenda Items and Current Issues 

 

City of Navasota 

City Council Meeting 

12-9-19 

 

1.  Call to order 

 

2. Invocation and Pledges of Allegiance 

  

3. Remarks of Visitors 

Staff is unaware of anyone wishing to address the City Council. 

 

 

4.  Staff Report: 

Update from Ameresco on meter replacement, lighting retro-fit and SCADA 

Installation – George Davis with Ameresco will provide an update on the 

progress of the meter replacement, lighting retrofit and SCADA Installation. 

 

Announcement of personnel changes – The City had some existing staff step in to 

new or expanded roles.  The City Manager will provide an announcement and 

recognition of the staff. 

 

Staff recognition for years of service – Staff who celebrated, 5, 10, 15, 20, 25 

years of service will be recognized.   

 

 

5.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 665-19, Accepting Dove 

Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street and drainage infrastructure. 

 Blackrock Builders completed all public improvements in the Dove Landing 

subdivision and request that the city accept the improvements, excluding the 

detention ponds, monument signs and cluster mail box areas.  It was also 

discovered that the public infrastructure in Dove Court was never presented to the 

City for acceptance, therefore they are also requesting the same for Dove Court. 

 

 

6.  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 666-19, support of 

proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of 

permit fees. 

Arx Advantage, a consulting group recently approached staff with a project that 

the Megan Group (owners of Navasota Landing Apartments) has hired them to 

perform.  The group is proposing to apply for Housing Tax Credits to fund the 

rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments.  They request that the City 

support the project with a resolution, and if City Council desires waiving or 

reducing the development fees in an amount of at least $250. 



7.  Report on U.S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar Creek. 

 The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers recently completed a Hydrology, Hydraulics 

and Economic Study of Cedar Creek.  The study determined that one the creek 

doesn’t carry as much water as originally thought or as determined by FEMA 

flood maps.  Also, there is not federal way to address any improvements in the 

creek as it doesn’t make sense to them economically.  The suggestion is to clean 

the vegetation from the creek, and USACE will present the City with a proposal 

for another project to change the floodplain areas around the creek using current 

data. 

   

 

8.  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion 

and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by 

the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by 

the City Council as part of the regular agenda. 

Consent Items Are: 

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of November, 

2019; 

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of 

November, 2019; 

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 

910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to 

M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J 

Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 

square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J 

Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, 

residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 

6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and 

A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, 

Texas. 

D. Consideration and possible action the second reading of Ordinance No. 911-

19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, providing for the 

annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides 

Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas 

 

9.  Consideration and possible action on Change Order NO. 1 on the SCADA 

System Projet. 

            During the selection process for installing SCADA controls for sewer lift stations, 

two (2) sites were not included because they were small and staff was looking at 

cost savings, and one was inadvertently left off the bid.  Since the bids were 

below estimates, we are able to add the two sites into the project.  By adding these 

three sites all of the sewer lift stations will be controlled with the new system. 

 



Calendar of Events 

 

December 24th & 25th    Christmas Holidays 

     City offices closed 

 

Dec. 23rd, 26th, 27th    Brad Vacation 

 

 

January 1st     New Year Holiday 

     City Offices Closed 

 

January 13th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.     Municipal Building 

 

January 20th     Martin Luther King Day 

     City Offices Closed 

 

January 27th     City Council Meeting 

6:00 p.m.    Municipal Building 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Brad Stafford 

City Manager 

 



 
 
 
 

Vision Statement: 
 

Navasota 2027:  What America Wants To Be 
“A beautiful, progressive, vibrant, service-oriented, 

close-knit community filled with 
historical charm and promise for people and business.” 

 
 

Mission Statement: 
 

“To guide Navasota’s growth in a way that maintains 
our heritage, culture, and uniqueness while 

maximizing our economic and social development.” 
 
 
 



 
 
 

THE CITY OF NAVASOTA 
COUNCIL LEADERSHIP POLICY 

 
 
It is the desire of the Navasota City Council to demonstrate responsible 
leadership by: 
 

(a) Establishing a 2027 Strategic Growth Map for the City of Navasota. 
 
(b) Assuring stable and effective city operations. 
 
(c) Developing and adopting policies that will guide the growth of the City 

of Navasota. 
 
(d) Facilitating private/public sector partnerships at the local, regional, 

state and federal level that will invest in the future of Navasota. 
 
(e) Ensuring all Navasota boards, commissions and committees are 

aligned with the Council’s growth policies. 



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

S.M.A.R.T. GOAL SETTING SYSTEM 

Area Today’s Date Target Date Date Achieved 

City Council Retreat 10/2/19 2019-2020  
 

Goal Statement: A descriptive statement of the DESIRED OUTCOME. 
(a S.M.A.R.T. Goal is Specific, Measurable, Actionable, Responsible and Time-bound) 

 
The Management Connection, Inc. provided professional facilitation to the City of Navasota Council on 

September 4th, 2019. This document captures the Council’s direction to staff.  
 

 

Action Steps (List the specific actions you will take to achieve this goal) Target Date Who 
Percentage 
Completion 

Outcomes 

Direction from Council  
1. There needs to be a discussion on how to get 

state lawmakers to partner with the City.  
a. Potentially inviting Schwertner, 

Leman, and Kolkhorst to visit and 
tour the city  

b. Alan Bojorquez is creating a report 
card on all the legislature and looking 
for help 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

2. Figure out a way to speed up the billing 
cycle to reduce the lag time from end of 
month to bill date for payments 

a. We can make every period longer or 
each period 31 days—it will take a 
few years, but you’ll catch up 

b. Propose a staff member under Lance 
and Rita to handle all meters—Meter 
Maintenance Technician 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

3. The City Manager will do a cost benefit 
analysis on the Boys and Girls Club  

a. Benefit of having them in the 
community along with the mechanics 
of it to present to the council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

4. The Council will move forward with the 
concept of bonds for utility and street 
improvements  

a. Bonds will be broken into three-year 
small increments 

i. Focus will be on high traffic 
roads first 

ii. Host community meetings to 
get more buy in from the city 

iii. City Manager will present the 
numbers to council 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

5. Gather a proposal for a new look and cost of 
renovating fire station at the current 
location.  

a. A rendering needs to be created to 
show the public 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

6. Review the Social Media policy (specifically 
# 3 & 4) as it relates to non-city employees 
and council members.  

a. It’s a developing area legally. We 
should review the policy because it’s 
from 2014 and make sure it’s in 
accordance with current situation. 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

7. Design the new website  
a. Have 2-3 citizens sit in to consult 

about the ease of receiving 
notifications. Get a mixture of people 
who are and aren’t familiar with 
computers  

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

8. Find more ways to get coverage in the news 
a. neighbors@theeagle.com - send 

pictures to get included 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  

9. Develop relationships with Boards and 
Commissions: 

a. Have a mandatory annual meeting 
with members to talk about what a 
comp plan is, what the Council’s 
expectations are, and that they need 
to be able to make decisions as a 
board. They need to know about open 

2019-
2020 Navasota Staff  



 
 

 979.846.4481     |     4444 Carter Creek Parkway, Ste. 110, Bryan, TX 77802     |     www.profacilitator.com 

meetings act, public information act, 
Robert’s Rules of Order, ect.  

i. By being involved, we have a 
chance to educate them about 
how the city works  

ii. We don’t want to take away 
their ability to think, but we 
can give them parameters  

iii. We should create a statement 
to be read before each meeting 
that says “we are our own 
board, we work toward the 
goals of the city and will stand 
by the final decision”. It’s a 
reminder that we’re all here to 
do the best for the city. A 
mission statement to go at the 
top of the packet. 

 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 4. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Staff Report:

(a) Update from Ameresco on meter replacement, lighting retro-
fit and SCADA installation;

(b) Announcement of personnel changes;

(c) Staff recognition for years of service;

(d) Board and Commission update; and

(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of
community interests, including expressions of thanks,
congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday
schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials,
public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming
events organized or sponsored by the City; information
regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or
sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended
by City officials or employees; and announcements involving
imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in
the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
 
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
 

ATTACHMENTS:

Brad Stafford, City Manager



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 5. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 

PREPARED BY:

 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 665-
19, accepting Dove Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street
and drainage infrastructure.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Blackrock Builders, LLC, substantially completed all public
improvements in the newly constructed Dove Landing Replat
Subdivision and request the City of Navasota accept street,
sewer, water and storm drain public improvements excluding
detention ponds, monument signs and cluster mail box areas.

Dove Court was developed in 2003 by Navasota Builders Group,
however the infrastructure was never formally accepted by the
City of Navasota. Subsequently Dove Court was purchased by
Blackrock Builders in 2018 and developed as a single dwelling
unit planned unit development using the existing infrastructure.
Street, sewer, water and storm drain improvements were
substantially completed in 2003 and require formal acceptance.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
none
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 665-19, accepting
Dove Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street and drainage
infrastructure.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 665-19
2. Letter from Black Rock Builders

Lupe Diosdado, Community Development
Director

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575476164x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575476194x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 665-19 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE WATER, SEWER, STREET AND STORM 

WATER DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS OF DOVE LANDING AND DOVE 
COURT, EXCLUDING MONUMENT SIGNAGE, MAILBOX AREAS AND 

RETENTION POND IN THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
 
WHEREAS, Dove Landing is a thirty-one (31) lot subdivision developed 

by Blackrock Builders; and 

WHEREAS, Dove Court is a thirty-two (32) lot subdivision developed by 
Navasota Builder Group, INC; and 

WHEREAS, water, sewer, street and storm drainage improvements were 
constructed by the developers; and 

WHEREAS, said water, sewer, street and storm drainage improvements 
have been offered for dedication to public use forever; and 

WHEREAS, the water, sewer, street and storm drainage improvements 
have been inspected by the City and found to be constructed in accordance with 
the City’s Standards and Specifications; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota desires to formally accept the water, 
sewer, street and storm drainage improvements of Dove Landing and Dove 
Court, excluding monument signage, mailbox areas and retention pond; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 

The City of Navasota hereby accepts the water, sewer, street and storm drainage 
improvements of Dove Landing and Dove Court, excluding monument signage, 
mailbox areas and retention pond in the City of Navasota, Texas and authorizes 
the Mayor to execute any necessary documentation.  
 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING ON THIS THE 9th DAY OF DECEMBER, 
2019. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
                                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED ON SECOND READING THIS THE 13th DAY OF JANUARY, 2020. 
                  
 
                                                             ______________________________ 
                                                                     BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 






December 3, 2019


The City of Navasota

200 E. McAlpine

Navasota, TX 77868


Att: Brad Stafford, City Manager


Re: Dove Landing Subdivision


Dear Mr. Stafford,


This letter is to inform you that the referenced subdivision is now substantially complete.  We 
respectfully request the acceptance of sewer, water, drainage, street lights, and street 
infrastructure by the The City of Navasota.


We appreciate your favorable consideration of this request.  Please contact us should you 
require any further information.


Sincerely,


Thomas W Pack Jr and Brian E McDonald

Co-Owners

Ante Development LLC and Blackrock Builders LP

info@blackrockbuilderstx.com

979-393-0173

Blackrock Builders LP
PO Box 326
Wellborn, TX 77881

Phone:  979-393-0173

EMail:  info@blackrockbuilderstx.com



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 6. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 666-
19, support of proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing
Apartments and waiver of permit fees.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
Megan Corporation, owners of Navasota Landing Apartments
plans to submit an application to the Texas Department of
Housing and Community Affairs for 2020 Housing Tax Credits to
rehabilitate the apartment complex.  Arx Advantage is assisting
the Megan Corporation with the project and asks the City to
support the project and waive permit fees in the amount of
$250.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 666-19, support of
proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and
waiver of permit fees in the amount of $250.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 666-19

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575474378x_at.pdf


RESOLUTION NO. 666-19 
 

 
WHEREAS, Navasota Landing Apartments has proposed the rehabilitation of 
affordable rental housing known as the Navasota Landing Apartments located at 
520 Laredo Street in the City of Navasota, Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, Navasota Landing Apartments has communicated that it intends to 
submit an application to the Texas Department of Housing and Community 
Affairs for 2020 Housing Tax Credits for the Navasota Landing Apartments 
development; and 
 
WHEREAS, Navasota Landing Apartments has requested a waiver of 
development/permit fees in the amount of $250.00 for the Navasota Landing 
Apartments development as a commitment of development funding from the City 
of Navasota, Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas has the authority to defer development 
fees on the property located at 520 Laredo Street; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT, 
 
The governing body of the City of Navasota, Texas, hereby adopts this resolution 
as evidence to its commitment of funds in the amount of $250.00 to be provided 
to the development in the form of a waiver of development/permit fees; and 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that as provided for in §11.3(c) of the Qualified 
Allocation Plan, it is expressly acknowledged and confirmed that the City of 
Navasota has more than twice the state average of units per capita supported 
by Housing Tax Credits or Private Activity Bonds; and 

 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Navasota, acting through its governing 
body, hereby confirms that it supports the proposed Navasota Landing 
Apartments proposed to be located at 520 Laredo Street and that this formal 
action has been taken to put on record the opinion expressed by the City of 
Navasota and confirms that its governing body has voted specifically to approve 
the rehabilitation of the Navasota Landing Apartments and to authorize an 
allocation of Housing Tax Credits for the Development pursuant to Texas 
Government Code §2306.6703(a)(4); and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that the rehabilitation of the Navasota Landing 
Apartments will contribute more than any other tax credit assisted housing 
development to the concerted revitalization efforts of the City; and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, that for and on behalf of the Governing Body, Bert 
Miller, Mayor are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to certify these 
resolutions to the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs. 
 
 
 



This resolution shall take effect immediately and upon passage. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this 9th day of December, 2019 at a 
regular meeting of the city council of the City of Navasota. 
 
 
 
                                              ______________________ 
                                                       BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYE, CITY SECRETARY 
 



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 7. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 1
on the SCADA System Project.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
During the selection process for installing SCADA controls for
sewer lift stations, two (2) sites were not included because they
were small and staff was looking at cost savings, and one was
inadvertently left off the bid.  Since the bids were below
estimates, we are able to add the two sites into the project.  By
adding these three sites all of the sewer lift stations will be
controlled with the new system.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of Change Order No. 1 in the amount
of $42,162.50.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Change Order No. 1
2. Field Order No. 1

Jeff Greer, Director of Utilities

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575568451x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575568481x_at.pdf




From: Jeff Greer
To: Alan Munger
Cc: Brad Stafford; John Winkler; Matt Julian; Jennifer Reyna
Subject: RE: Additional Lift Stations
Date: Tuesday, November 26, 2019 7:40:23 AM

Alan
 
Yes. I would like to have everything on the new system. Thanks
 

Jeff Greer
Public Works Utility Director
City of Navasota
JGreer@navasotatx.gov                 
tel: 936-825-6475
fax: 936–825-4018
 

 
 

From: Alan Munger [mailto:rmunger@walkerpartners.com] 
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 5:10 PM
To: Jeff Greer <jgreer@navasotatx.gov>; Jennifer Reyna <jreyna@navasotatx.gov>
Cc: Brad Stafford <bstafford@navasotatx.gov>; John Winkler <JWinkler@walkerpartners.com>
Subject: Additional Lift Stations
 
Jeff:

At our SCADA pre-negotiation meeting on October 22nd, we discussed the likelihood of adding
SCADA for the following lift station locations:

·         Soccer Field (near airport)
·         Swimming Pool (off of Brule St.)

 
John said that a change order for these additions was not discussed at the pre-con meeting last
week.  Would you like us to proceed with preparation of a change order to add these locations at
this time?  I’ll be happy to discuss further with you as needed.
 
Thanks,
R. "ALAN" MUNGER, P.E., CFM
Manager

www.WalkerPartners.com
2700 Earl Rudder Fwy, Suite 1600 
College Station, Texas 77845

W 979.599.9870
M 281.770.6048
 

mailto:jgreer@navasotatx.gov
mailto:rmunger@walkerpartners.com
mailto:bstafford@navasotatx.gov
mailto:JWinkler@walkerpartners.com
mailto:mjulian@navasotatx.gov
mailto:jreyna@navasotatx.gov
http://www.walkerpartners.com/
http://www.walkerpartners.com/












ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 8. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Report on U.S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar
Creek.
 

ITEM BACKGROUND:
City staff has worked with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers over
the past several years to complete a hydrology and hydraulics
study of Cedar Creek.  The study will be utilized to determine
whether further work should be completed to prevent flood
damage.  The study is complete and staff will provide the
results of the study.
 

BUDGETARY AND FINANCIAL SUMMARY:
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends listening to the presentation.
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Cedar Creek Study

Brad Stafford, City Manager

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574701993x_at.pdf


Southwestern Division

Fort Worth District

Date: 20 November 2019

CEDAR Creek 
Section 205:  
Hydrology, Hydraulics, 
and Economics



2

USACE H&H Study
1. Developed a hydrologic HEC-HMS Model

2. Drainage area = 5.67 square miles

3. 14 sub-areas

4. Land use data from aerial photography

5. Developed a hydraulic HEC-RAS Model

6. Topographic data developed from 2011 LiDAR

7. Cedar Creek (5.2 miles) and Tributary 1 (1.51 miles) 

8. 12 bridges (data from bridge plans and field measurements)



3USACE Study
Schematic of HEC-HMS Model



4USACE Study
Schematic of HEC-HMS X-Sections & Bridges

1

27346

2664826340
25759

25124
246172362623063

22779

22383

21953
21644

21148
20641

C
edar Creek

2

20291

19956

18747

18142

17839

17591

17379

17027

16780

16633

15928
15684

15430

15172

14925

14507
14187

13819
134971292911800

10897

9857

9607

9147

8700

7879

6763

6228

5675

5270
3933

3402

C
e
da

r
 C

r
e

e k

1

7961

7734

7497

7116

6845

6115

5633

53704971

4552
4178

3682

33982889

2254

1914
1737

558

Tr

ib_1



5FEMA vs. USACE
H & H 100-year Precipitation Events

Cedar Creek Location
Peak 100-year Flows

(cfs)

FEMA Study USACE Study

At BNSF Railroad 9,570 8,100

At UP Railroad 8,703 5,730

At Victoria Avenue 5,178 4,830

At SH 6 3,314 2,900



6USACE vs. FEMA 
H & H 100-year Water Surface Elevations

Cedar Creek Location
100-year Water Surface Elevations

(feet)

FEMA Study USACE Study

BNSF Railroad 195.0 194.6

UP Railroad 215.4 208.0

LaSalle Street 216.0 211.8

Brosig Avenue 219.5 218.2

Victoria Avenue 228.5 228.5

SH 6 239.0 239.7



7FEMA vs. USACE 100-year Floodplains



8FEMA vs. USACE Hydrology & Hydraulics
Why are they different?

• Several unknowns of the NRCS study that was adopted as the 

effective FEMA model, the FEMA model is unavailable (the 

report and output have been reviewed)

• FEMA model used a single sub-basin - the USACE used 

multiple sub-basins

• Possible difference in topographic data

• Differences in backwater modeling techniques



9

USACE economic analysis

175

185

195

205

215

225

235

245

11000 13000 15000 17000 19000 21000 23000

S
ta

g
e

/
F

ir
s
t 

F
lo

o
r 

E
le

v
a

ti
o

n

River Station

2 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr 25 Yr 50 Yr 100 Yr 250 Yr 500 Yr Structures

Downstream Upstream

Railroad

Bridge



10

USACE Economic Analysis

Damage 

Category

2 Yr 5 Yr 10 Yr 25 Yr 50 Yr 100 Yr 250 Yr 500 Yr

No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs No. Dmgs

Single Family 

Residential
3 <$1 6 $23 13 $44 14 $74 15 $108 17 $145 33 $232 45 $346

Multi-Family 

Residential
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mobile Homes 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 <$1 3 <$1 3 1 5 2 7 4

Commercial 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 7 34 9 76 13 158 17 372

Public 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1

Total Structure 3 <$1 6 $23 13 $44 18 $75 25 $142 29 $222 51 $392 70 $723

Privately Owned 

Vehicles
2 $9 7 $50 13 $90 15 $127 17 $156 21 $193 26 $246 43 $321

Total Damages $10 $73 $135 $202 $298 $415 $638
$1,04

4

* Values in $1000



11

USACE Economic Analysis

Alternative Commercial
Multi Family 

Residential

Mobile 

Homes
Public 

Single Family 

Residential

Total 

Structural

Privately 

Owned 

Vehicles

Total 

EAD

Maximum 

Supportable 

First Cost

Without Project 5.51 0 0.07 0.03 17.53 23.14 28.21 51.35

RR Bridge Deck 

Removal
3.34 0 0.07 0 17.61 21.02 28.29 49.31

Benefits 2.17 0 0 0.03 -0.08 2.12 -0.08 2.04 $53.76 

RR Bridge Deck 

Removal and 

Clearing and 

Grubbing

1.99 0 0.07 0 17.36 19.42 28.27 47.69

Benefits 3.52 0 0 0.03 0.17 3.72 -0.06 3.66 $96.45 

RR Bridge Deck 

Removal and 

Extended Clearing 

and  Grubbing

1.07 0 0.06 0 16.31 17.44 24.73 42.17

Benefits 4.44 0 0.01 0.03 1.22 5.7 3.48 9.18 $241.91 

Extended Clearing 

and Grubbing
1.43 0 0.05 0 16.29 17.77 24.75 42.52

Benefits 4.08 0 0.02 0.03 1.24 5.37 3.46 8.83 $232.69 



12

Where Downtown Floods Are Coming From

• Capacity and conveyance limitations of the storm drain 

system

• The profile of Washington Avenue is higher than the land 

to the south, preventing water from sheet flowing north 

to Cedar Creek, and several of the storm drain trunk 

lines are undersized, preventing water from being 

conveyed to the creek1. 

1 Drainage Report Hazard Mitigation Grant Program Application for Cedar Creek, Lockwood Andrews & Newman, Inc., 2015



13

Path Forward

1. Take USACE study and modify to FEMA study level standards

a. Develop model - ~$50,000

2. Study Closeout

3. USACE findings support previous engineering studies 

showing that clearing the channel of vegetation and 

sediment would improve conditions.  



14

Questions



ITEM: 

CITY OF NAVASOTA
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 9. AGENDA DATE: December 9,
2019

 
PREPARED BY:
 
APPROVED BY: BS
 

Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon
with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City
Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from
the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the
City Council as part of the regular agenda.

Consent Items Are:

A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the
month of November, 2019;

B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the
month of November, 2019;

C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of
Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District
for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3,
Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single
dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the
property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres
54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open
space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit,
residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-
6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6,
Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres
10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.

D. Consideration and possible action the second reading of
Ordinance No. 911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City
of Navasota, providing for the annexation of approximately
102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-
62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.

 

Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the consent agenda items which
include the minutes for the month of November 2919, the
expenditures for the month of November, 2019; the second
reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning
from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy
Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J
Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from
A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density,
single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for
the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1,
Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O:
Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-
dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally
described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50,
A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D
Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes
County, the second reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, extending
the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, providing for the
annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the
James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-
55, Grimes County, Texas.

 
 

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Minutes - 11-12-2019
2. Minutes - 11-25-2019
3. Expenditures for November 2019
4. Ordinance No. 910-19
5. Ordinance No. 911-19

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574698421x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575557500x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575470276x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574699002x_at.pdf
http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1574699029x_at.pdf


MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

NOVEMBER 12, 2019 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council Chambers, Room No. 

161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, Texas on the above date with the following 

being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; Lance Hall, Finance 

Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung Mai, IT Specialist; Jonathan Soresbee, 

Community Development Specialist; Kathrine Thogersen, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Secretary; Jeff 

Greer, Director of Utilities; Kris Gruner, Community Outreach Specialist; Michael Mize, Lieutenant; Shawn 

Myatt, Police Chief/Assistant City Manager; Madison Brooks, Marketing and Communication Coordinator and 

Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel. 

 

VISITORS:  Connie Clements, Deborah Richardson, Andrea Perrard, Terry Carr, Karen Neal-Brown and Allison 

Neal. 

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt.  The City Council, staff members and visitors then 

recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 

(a) Utility Director Jeff Greer gave an update on the ground storage tank; 

 

(b) Police Chief/Assistant City Manager Shawn Myatt gave an update on the results of Treats on the 

Streets; 

 



(c) Economic Development Specialist Jonathan Sosebee gave an update on the attendance of the 

Texas Downtown Association Conference; 

  

(d) There were not any Board and Commission updates; 

 

(e) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  A public hearing was held on the proposed Navasota Economic Development   Corporation budget for 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and a proposed Economic Development Corporation, 4B Project, a Business 

Improvement Grant Program in the amount of $50,000.  Mayor Bert Miller opened the public hearing 

at 6:15 p.m.  With no comments from the public, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 6:16 

p.m. 

 

6. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the second reading of Resolution No. 661-19, approving 

the Navasota Economic Development Corporation Budget for FY 2019-2020, seconded by 

Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

7. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the second reading of Resolution No. 662-19, approving 

a proposed Economic Development Corporation, 4B Project; a business improvement grant program in 

the amount of $50,000.00, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with each Councilmember 

voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

8. Mayor Bert Miller moved to approve Proposal 1 and 2 from Rent-A-Ruminant Texas in the amount of 

$13,105.50, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the 

motion carried. 

 

9. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve Resolution No. 664-19, regarding the requested 

annexation by James C. Hassell of a 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 

and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas, setting a date, time and place for a public 

hearing on a proposed annexation of certain property by the City of Navasota, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

10. Community Outreach Specialist Kris Gruver gave a status report on the property located at 1519 S. 

LaSalle.  Property owners, Karen Neal-Brown and Allison Neal both addressed the City Council about 

needing more time to finish the repairs. 

 

 

11. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to allow Karen Neal-Brown additional time, until March 31, 2020, to 

finish the repairs on the property located at 1519 S. LaSalle and have legal counsel draw up an 

agreement and get signed without coming back to the City Council with the Order and attach a list of 

items that need to be completed as “Exhibit A”, seconded by Councilmember Geoff Horn and with 

each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 



 

12. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 907-19, 

amending Chapter 2, Animal Control of the Code of Ordinances, City of Navasota, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

13. Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the minutes and expenditures for the month of 

October 2019; the second reading of Ordinance No. 908-19, appraisal roll – Brazos County portion and 

the second reading of Ordinance No. 909-19, appraisal roll – Grimes County portion, seconded by 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and with each Councilmember voting AYE, the motion carried. 

 

14. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 



MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

 

The City Council of the City of Navasota, Grimes County, Texas met at the City Council 

Chambers, Room No. 161, located at 200 E. McAlpine Street at 6:00 p.m., Navasota, 

Texas on the above date with the following being present: 

 

Bernie Gessner, Councilmember, Place # 1 

Josh M. Fultz, Councilmember, Place # 3 

Bert Miller, Mayor, Place # 4 

Grant E. Holt, Mayor Pro-Tem, Place # 5 

 

(Geoff Horn, Councilmember, Place # 2 was absent) 

 

Thus constituting a quorum. 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Brad Stafford, City Manager; Susie M. Homeyer, City Secretary; 

Lance Hall, Finance Director; Lupe Diosdado, Community Development Director; Hung 

Mai, IT Specialist; Jonathan Soresbee, Community Development Specialist; Marla Gurka, 

Executive Assistant; Sarah Stewart, Shelby Shumate and Cary Bovey, Legal Counsel. 

 

VISITORS:  Matthew Ybarra, Deborah Richardson, Andrea Perrard, Karen Moody, 

Barbara Walker, John Hubbard, Ricky Belle, Mary Belle, Louis and Nancy Vidotto and 

Krista Mattert.  

 

THE ITEMS ON THE AGENDA WERE TAKEN UP IN DUE ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1.  Mayor Bert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2.  Invocation was given by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt.  The City Council, staff 

members and visitors then recited the Pledge of Allegiance to the American Flag 

and the Texas Flag. 

 

3.  Remarks of visitors:  None. 

 

4.  Staff report: 

 



(a) Executive Assistant Marla Gurka introduced the new communication 

operators; 

 

(b) City Manager Brad Stafford updated the City Council on the Arts Council 

quarterly report for the 4th quarter; 

 

(c) Mayor Bert Miller proclaimed the month of December 2019 as “Tree of 

Angels” month. 

  

(d) Councilmember Bernie Gessner updated the City Council on the latest 

Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  Economic Development Specialist 

Jonathan Sosebee gave an update on the latest Navasota Economic 

Development Corporation meeting; 

 

(e) Councilmembers and staff informed the audience about upcoming events. 

 

5.  A public hearing was held regarding zoning changes initiated by the Planning 

and Zoning Commission changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/Open Space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property 

legally described as A0046 J. Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the 

current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space district to R-1A: High Density, 

single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property 

legally described as A0046 J. Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the 

current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to R-3: High Density, 

multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as 

A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 6, Par 

18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in 

Navasota, Texas, Grimes County, Texas.  Mayor Miller opened the public 

hearing at 6:15 p.m. The following individuals spoke during the public hearing:  

Louis Vidotto, Krista Mattert, Ricky Belle, Barbara Walker and John Hubbard.  

With no further comments, Mayor Bert Miller closed the public hearing at 6:35 

p.m. 

 

6.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 

910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 

to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J. 

Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/Open Space district to R-1A: High Density, single dwelling unit, 

7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as 



A0046 J. Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: 

Agriculture/Open Space District to R-2: Medium Density, multi-dwelling unit, 

residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 

6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and 

A0055-6 D. Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Texas, Grimes 

County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Bernie Gessner.  The following 

votes were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt,                

Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember 

Bernie Gessner 

 

NAYS:  None 

 

ABSENT:  Councilmember Geoff Horn 

 

Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 

 

7.  A public hearing was held regarding the voluntary annexation request submitted 

by James C. Hassell of a 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides 

Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.  Mayor 

Bert Miller opened the public hearing at 6:39 p.m.  Citizen Barbara Walker 

addressed the City Council about the rezoning.  With no further comments, 

Mayor Bert Miller close the public hearing at 6:45 p.m. 

 

8.  Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve the Annexation Service Plan 

Agreement for the delivery of municipal services to a 102.4197 acre tract 

proposed for annexation to the City of Navasota, seconded by Councilmember 

Bernie Gessner.  The following votes were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt, 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Bernie 

Gessner 

 

NAYS:  None. 

 

ABSENT:  Councilmember Geoff Horn 

 

Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 



 

9.  Councilmember Bernie Gessner moved to approve the first reading of Ordinance 

No. 911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, Texas 

providing for the annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the 

James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes 

County, Texas, seconded by Councilmember Josh Fultz. The following votes 

were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt, 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Bernie 

Gessner 

 

NAYS:  None. 

 

ABSENT:  Councilmember Geoff Horn 

 

 Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 

 

10. Councilmember Josh Fultz moved to approve the second reading of Ordinance 

No. 907-19, amending Chapter 2, Animal Control of the Code of Ordinances, 

City of Navasota, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt.  The following votes 

were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt, 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Bernie 

Gessner 

 

NAYS:  None. 

 

ABSENT:  Councilmember Geoff Horn 

 

  Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 

 

11. The City Council met in Executive Session as permitted by Section 551.087, 

Texas Government Code, for the purpose of deliberation regarding economic 

development negotiations with Kolkhorst Development Navasota, LLC regarding 

the development of commercial and other improvements to property located on 

E. Washington Avenue, Navasota, Grimes County, Texas. The time was 6:49 

p.m. 



 

12. The City Council reconvened in open session at 7:10 p.m. 

 

13. Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt moved to approve a Chapter 380 agreement with 

Kolkhorst Development Navasota LLC regarding the development of commercial 

and other improvements to the property located on E. Washington, Navasota, 

Grimes County, Texas.  The following votes were recorded: 

 

AYES:  Mayor Bert Miller, Mayor Pro-Tem Grant Holt, 

Councilmember Josh Fultz and Councilmember Bernie 

Gessner 

 

NAYS:  None. 

 

ABSENT:  Councilmember Geoff Horn 

 

  Mayor Bert Miller announced that the motion carried. 

 

14. Mayor Bert Miller adjourned the meeting at 7:13 p.m. 

  

 

                                                  ______________________________ 

                                                           BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 













































































































ORDINANCE NO. 910-19 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: 
AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT TO M-2: HEAVY INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 22.809, AMENDING THE 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS TO REZONE THE 
FOLLOWING PROPERTY FROM A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN SPACE DISTRICT 
TO R-1A: HIGH DENSITY, SINGLE DWELLING UNIT, 7,000 SQUARE FOOT 
LOT, RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, ACRES 54.00, 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS 
TO REZONE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTIES FROM A/O: AGRICULTURE/OPEN 
SPACE DISTRICT TO R-2: MEDIUM DENSITY, MULTI-DWELLING UNIT, 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, ACRES 67.50, 
A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 and A0055-6 D TYLER, 
TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, on the 10TH day of October 2019, a workshop was held by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to discuss the rezoning of certain properties currently 
zoned as A/O: Agricultural/Open Space Districts to be in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, it was determined that a 22.809 acre tract legally described as 
A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space 
District to M-2: Heavy Industrial District; and 

 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 54 acre tract legally described as A0046 J 

MOORE, TRACT 21-1, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to 

R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was determined that a 67.50 acre tract legally described as 

A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, a 23.52 acre tract legally described as A0055-6 D 
TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, and a 10 acre tract legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, 
TRACT 19-1, should be rezoned from A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District to R-3: high 
density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the rezoning of said properties is in harmony with the 

Comprehensive Plan of the City of Navasota; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 14th of November 2019, a public hearing was held before the 
Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Navasota, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda for said Commission 



meeting, an opportunity to present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning 
was held; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties are shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes pertinent; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 
City Council, that the property legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 
22.809, be rezoned as M-2: Heavy Industrial District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the property legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, 
ACRES 54.00, be rezoned as R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot 
lot, residential district; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends to the Navasota 

City Council, that the properties legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 
19, ACRES 67.50, A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 and A0055-6 D 
TYLER, TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00, be rezoned as R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling 
unit, residential district; and 
 

WHEREAS, on the 25th day of November 2019, after notice as required by law, 
a public hearing was held before the Navasota City Council, a quorum being present on 
the occasion and said matter of rezoning being part of the agenda, an opportunity to 
present arguments for and against the proposed rezoning was held; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following property currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to M-2: Heavy Industrial District: a 22.809 acre tract legally described as A0046 J 
MOORE, TRACT 4-3. 
 
SECTION 2. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district: a 
54 acre tract legally described as A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1. 
 
SECTION 3. The Official Zoning Map of the City of Navasota is hereby amended to 
change the following properties currently zoned as A/O: Agriculture/Open Space District 
to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district: a 67.50 acre tract 
legally described as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, a 23.52 acre tract legally 



described as, A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, and a 10 acre tract legally described 
as A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 19-1. 
 
SECTION 4. That if any section, subsection, word, sentence or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held invalid, it shall not affect the remaining parts of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage, 
approval, and adoption on second reading.  
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25th DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2019. 
 
 
                                                                     _________________________ 
                                                                          BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING THIS 9TH DAY OF 
DECEMBER 2019. 
 
 
                                                                       ______________________ 
                                                                            BERT MILLER, MAYOR 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Exhibit “A” 

 

 
 

R13769: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 4-3, ACRES 22.809 
 

 
 



R13790: A0046 J MOORE, TRACT 21-1, ACRES 54.00 

 
 

R14377:  A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 18, ACRES 23.52 
R36854: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 19-1, ACRES 10.00 

R14379: A0055-6 D TYLER, TRACT 6, PAR 19, ACRES 67.50 



 

 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 911-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS OF 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR THE 
ANNEXATION OF APPROXIMATELY 102.4197 ACRES OF 
LAND, HEREINAFTER MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED, TO 
THE CITY OF NAVASOTA, TEXAS FOR ALL MUNICIPAL 
PURPOSES; FINDING THAT ALL NECESSARY AND 
REQUIRED LEGAL CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN SATISFIED; 
PROVIDING THAT SUCH AREA SHALL BECOME A PART OF 
THE CITY AND THAT THE INHABITANTS THEREOF, IF ANY, 
SHALL BE ENTITLED TO THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF 
OTHER CITIZENS AND BE BOUND BY THE ACTS AND 
ORDINANCES NOW IN EFFECT AND TO BE HEREINAFTER 
ADOPTED; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas is a Texas home-rule municipality 

as defined by the Texas Local Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the City Charter and Chapter 43 of the Texas Local 

Government Code, V.T.C.A., authorize the City of Navasota to annex territory in 

accordance with the procedures provided for therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota received a written request from the 

property owner requesting the annexation of the hereinafter described area; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to annex the area described hereinafter; and  

WHEREAS, the hereinafter described area lies within the extraterritorial 

jurisdiction of the City of Navasota; and 

WHEREAS, the area hereinafter described lies adjacent and contiguous 

to the present boundary limits of the City of Navasota; and 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, notice of the appropriate public hearing was published in a 

newspaper having general circulation in the City of Navasota, Texas and the 

public hearing was conducted and held in accordance with applicable law; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Navasota, Texas prepared a service plan for the 

extension of municipal services into the area to be annexed; and 

WHEREAS, all notices, publication and hearings have been duly given 

and held as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, institution of annexation proceedings occurred within the 

period of time as prescribed by law; Now Therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

NAVASOTA, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the hereinafter described area of land is within the 

extraterritorial jurisdiction of, and is adjacent to and is contiguous to the present 

corporate limits of the City of Navasota, Texas, and the same is hereby, annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas for all municipal purposes and the corporate lines 

and limits of the City of Navasota, Texas are hereby extended to embrace the 

said area of land, which is described as follows: 

 

All that certain 102.4197 Acre tracts of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-

62, and Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas, being more particularly 

described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes.  



 

 3 

Section 2. That the inhabitants, if any, of the property hereby annexed 

to the City of Navasota, Texas shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of 

said citizens of the City of Navasota, Texas, and shall be bound by the acts, 

ordinances, codes, resolutions and regulations of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 3. That the Service Plan which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 

is hereby approved and incorporated herein as part of this Ordinance for all 

purposes. 

Section 4. That the official map and boundaries of the City of Navasota, 

Texas, heretofore adopted and amended be and is hereby amended so as to 

include the aforementioned areas as part of the City of Navasota, Texas. 

Section 5. That the City Secretary is hereby directed and authorized to 

perform or cause to be performed all acts necessary to amend the official map of 

the City of Navasota, Texas to add the territories hereby annexed as required by 

law. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall become effective after its passage. 

Section 7. That the Mayor is hereby directed and authorized to file a 

certified copy of this Ordinance in the Office of the County Clerk, and to perform 

all other acts necessary to notify the appropriate entities of the City’s annexation 

of territories by this Ordinance. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph 

or provision of this Ordinance be found to be illegal, invalid or unconstitutional or 

if any portion of said property is incapable of being annexed by the City of 



 

 4 

Navasota, Texas, for any reason whatsoever, the adjudication shall not affect 

any other section, subsection, sentence, phrase, word, paragraph or provision of 

this Ordinance or the application of any other section, subsection, sentence, 

phrase, word, paragraph or provision of any other Ordinance of the City. The 

City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 

applications of this Ordinance and would have annexed the valid property 

without the invalid part, and as to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are 

declared to be severable. 

Section 9. That the meetings at which this Ordinance was considered 

and enacted were open to the public as required by the Texas Open Meetings 

Act, and that notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the meetings was 

given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING THIS THE 25TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2019. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                              HON. BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 5 

 
PASSED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING THIS THE 9TH DAY OF 
DECEMBER, 2019. 
 
 
                                                              ________________________ 
                                                                HON. BERT MILLER, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
SUSIE M. HOMEYER, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
        
 



CITY OF NAVASOTA
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

1. PLANNING CALENDAR

http://174.127.112.94/downloadScripts/getAttachment.php?cID=10000125&authSessId=&aName=1575579408x_at.pdf


 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 

 
 

DECEMBER 9, 2019 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 11/25/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Update from Ameresco on meter replacement; lightening and SCADA 

installation; (b) Announcement of Personnel Changes; (c) Staff recognition of  Years of 
Service; (d) Board and Commission update; and (e) Reports from staff and City Council 

5.   Resolution No. 665-19 - accepting Dove Landing infrastructure 
6. Resolution No. 666-19 - of support for improvements at Navasota Landing 
7.   Report from U.S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar Creek 
8.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of November 2019; (b) Expenditures for the 

month of November 2019; (c) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, rezoning of properties; 
and (d) 2nd reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, voluntary annexation (extending boundaries) 
from Jim Hassell 

9.   Change Order No. 1 – SCADA system 
10. Adjourn 

 
 

JANUARY 13, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 12/30/2019 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Election update; (b) Board and Commission update; and (c) Reports from 

staff and City Council 
5.   1st reading of Ordinance No. 912-19 – Right-of-Way Management 
6.   Consent agenda: (a) Minutes for the month of December 2019; and(b) Expenditures for the 

month of December 2019 
7.   Adjourn 

 
 

JANUARY 27, 2020 - DEADLINE FOR SUBMITTING ITEMS AND COVER SHEETS FOR THIS MEETING IS 12/13/2020 

1.   Called to order 
2.   Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance 
3.   Remarks of visitors 
4.   Staff Report: (a) Board and Commission update; and (b) Reports from staff and City Council 
5.   Adjourn 

 


	Regular Meeting
	Agenda Item No.  -  City Manager's Message and Statements and Priorities
	 City Manager's Message
	 Statements and Priorities

	Agenda Item No. 4 -  Staff Report:
(a) Update from Ameresco on meter replacement, lighting retro-fit and SCADA installation;
(b) Announcement of personnel changes;
(c) Staff recognition for years of service;
(d) Board and Commission update; and
(e) Reports from City Staff or City Officials regarding items of community interests, including expressions of thanks, congratulations or condolence; information regarding holiday schedules; honorary or salutary recognition of public officials, public employees, or other citizens; reminders about upcoming events organized or sponsored by the City; information regarding social, ceremonial, or community events organized or sponsored by a non-City entity that is scheduled to be attended by City officials or employees; and announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety of people in the City that has arisen after the posting of the agenda.
	Agenda Item No. 5 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 665-19, accepting Dove Landing and Dove Court water, sewer, street and drainage infrastructure.
	 Resolution No. 665-19
	 Letter from Black Rock Builders

	Agenda Item No. 6 -  Consideration and possible action on Resolution No. 666-19, support of proposed rehabilitation of Navasota Landing Apartments and waiver of permit fees.
	 Resolution No. 666-19

	Agenda Item No. 7 -  Consideration and possible action on Change Order No. 1 on the SCADA System Project.
	 Change Order No. 1
	 Field Order No. 1

	Agenda Item No. 8 -  Report on U.S. Army Corps of Engineers study of Cedar Creek.
	 Cedar Creek Study

	Agenda Item No. 9 -  Consent Agenda: The following items may be acted upon with one motion and vote. No separate discussion or action is necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a City Councilmember, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion and/or action by the City Council as part of the regular agenda.
Consent Items Are:
A. Consideration and possible action on the minutes for the month of November, 2019;
B. Consideration and possible action on the expenditures for the month of November, 2019;
C. Consideration and possible action on the second reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
D. Consideration and possible action the second reading of Ordinance No. 911-19, extending the boundary limits of the City of Navasota, providing for the annexation of approximately 102.4197 acre tract of land in the James Whitesides Survey, A-62 and the Daniel Tyler Survey, A-55, Grimes County, Texas.









first reading of Ordinance No. 892-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to B-1: General Business District for the property legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 31-1, 2, Par 1, Acres 2.35, 31-1, 2, Par 1, changing the current zoning from split A/O: Agriculture/open space district/ B-1: General Business District to B-1: General Business District for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 50, Acres 3.209, Thane 90 Subdivision, Lot A, Acres 2.057, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-3: high density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district, for the properties legally described as A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 51-4, Acres 25.6104, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 48-7, Acres 18, A0044 Jesse B MC Nealy, Tract 41-2, Acres 5.4156, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.


Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
Consideration and possible action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 910-19, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to M-2: Heavy Industrial District for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 4-3, Acres 22.809, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-1A: high density, single dwelling unit, 7,000 square foot lot, residential district for the property legally described as A0046 J Moore, Tract 21-1, Acres 54.00, changing the current zoning from A/O: Agriculture/open space district to R-2: medium density, multi-dwelling unit, residential district for the properties legally described as A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 19, Acres 67.50, A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 6, Par 18, Acres 23.52 and A0055-6 D Tyler, Tract 19-1, Acres 10.00, located in Navasota, Grimes County, Texas.
	 Minutes - 11-12-2019
	 Minutes - 11-25-2019
	 Expenditures for November 2019
	 Ordinance No. 910-19
	 Ordinance No. 911-19

	Agenda Item No. 10 -  1. Planning Calendar

	 Planning Calendar


